g Neath Port Talbot
==~ (astell-nedd Port Talbot AGENDA

County Borough Council Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol

PWYLLGOR DEDDFAU TRWYDDEDU A GAMBLO
10.00 AM - DYDD LLUN, 19 AWST 2024

CYFARFOD AML-LEOLIAD - SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, PORT TALBOT A
MICROSOFT TEAMS

Webcasting/Hybrid Meetings:

This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the
Council’s Internet Site. By participating you are consenting to be
filmed and the possible use of those images and sound recordings
for webcasting and/or training purposes.

1.  Cyhoeddiadau'r Cadeirydd
2.  Datganiadau o fuddiannau

3.  Cofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol (Tudalennau 3 - 4)

Cofnodion cyfarfodydd blaenorol yr Is-Bwyllgor Deddfau Trwyddedu
a Gamblo (12 Chwefror 2024)

Adroddiad gan Bennaeth y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol

4, Deddf Gamblo 2005 - Adolygiad o'r Polisi Gamblo (Tudalennau 11
-74)

5.  Eitemau brys
Unrhyw eitemau brys yn 6l disgresiwn y Cadeirydd yn unol ag
Adran 100B(6)(b) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 (fel y'i

diwygiwyd).

K.Jones




Chief Executive

Civic Centre
Port Talbot Dydd Mawrth, 13 Awst 2024

Aelodaeth y Pwyllgor:

Cadeirydd: Y Cynghorydd A.J.Richards
Is-gadeirydd: Y Cynghorydd J.Henton

Aelodau: S.Paddison, S.Renkes, A.Dacey, H.Davies,
A.Lodwig, D.Whitelock, L.Williams, A.R.Aubrey,
D.M.Peters, S.E.Freeguard, G.Rice, A.R.Lockyer
a B.Woolford



Eitem yr Agenda3

-1 -
LICENSING AND GAMBLING ACTS COMMITTEE

(Multi Location Hybrid Microsoft Teams/Council Chamber)

Members present: 30 October 2023
Chairperson: Councillor A.J.Richards

Vice Chairperson: Councillor J.Henton

Councillor: W.Carpenter, A.Dacey, H.Davies, A.Lodwig,

S.Paddison, S.Renkes, L.Williams, R.G.Jones,
R.W.Wood, D.M.Peters and A.R.Aubrey

Officers present: P. Malough, M. Shaw, L. Thomas, J.Woodman-
Ralph

Representative of the N. Bailey
Police Authority:

1. CHAIRPERSONS ANNOUNCEMENTS

Councillor A. J. Richards welcomed all to the meeting.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were received.

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the previous meeting held on the 10" of July were
approved, as a true and accurate account.

4. URGENT ITEMS

There were no urgent items.

CHAIRPERSON

301023 Tudalen3



This page is intentionally left blank

Tudalen4



Atodiad I'r Agenda

-1 -
LICENSING AND GAMBLING ACTS SUB COMMITTEE

(Multi-Location Meeting via Teams or Council Chamber, Port Talbot)

Members Present: 12 February 2024
Chairperson: Councillor A.J.Richards

Vice Chair Person: Councillor J. Henton

Councillors: S.Paddison

Officers in N.Chapple, P.Malough, G.White, S.McCluskie,
Attendance: J.Woodman-Ralph and Lewis

Represnting Police Sergeant C. Dix, N. Evans

Officers:

1. Chairpersons Announcements

The Chair, Councillor A J Richards welcomed all to the meeting.

2. Declarations of Interest

There were none.

3. Application for a review of a premises licence

Resolved:

The Sub-Committee Resolved that in determining the review:
1. the current Designated Premises Supervisor was removed from the
Premises Licence; and
2. the conditions of the Premises Licence should be Modified, pursuant to
s52(4)(a) of the Licensing Act 2003, with additional conditions in support of
the licensing objectives.

Condition[s]
To be removed
1. The following condition[s] to be removed from the Premises Licence,

namely:
a. Ensure that all windows and doors are kept closed whilst amplified
music is being played.

To be attached
2. The following condition[s] will be added to the Premises Licence, namely:

120224 Tudalen5



120224

-2

. No customers carrying open/sealed bottles or glasses will be

admitted to the Premises at any time.

. No customers will be permitted to take open/sealed bottles or

glasses out of the Premises.

. There shall be no admittance or re-admittance to the Premises from

45 minutes before the last permitted hours.

. A ‘Challenge 25’ policy will apply and Proof of Age will be required

from any person who appears to be under the age of 25 years who
attempts to purchase or consume alcohol. The means of verification
should be a form of identification which bears: their photograph;
date of birth; and a holographic mark, and should be restricted to:
i. P.A.S.S Accredited Proof of Age Schemes e.g. Citizen Card;
ii. Proof GB;
iii.  Photo card, driving licence or passport.

. Signage shall be displayed in a prominent position within the

Premises, informing of the ‘Challenge 25’ policy;

. A Digital CCTV system shall be installed, or existing system

maintained, at the Premises, which will be operational at all times
when the Premises is open to the public, and capable of providing
pictures/photographs of evidential quality in all lighting conditions,
particularly facial identification. The CCTV recordings must be
correctly times and date stamped, and retained for a period of 31
days, and made available for viewing by the Police and/or
authorised officer(s) of the Council, on request.

The system must provide coverage of the following areas:
i.  The exterior perimeter of the Premises;

ii.  The entrance(s) and exit(s) to the Premises; and
iii.  The interior public areas of the Premises.

. A staff member from the Premises, who is conversant with the

operation of the CCTV system shall be on the Premises at all times
when the Premises is open to the public. This staff member must
be able to provide the Police and/or authorised officer(s) of the
Council copies of CCTV recordings (including footage, images
and/or data) in a recordable format either to a USB and/or on-line
evidence facility and/or a disk.

. Any and all CCTV recordings shall be made available immediately

for viewing on request from the Police and/or authorised officer(s)

Tudalen6



120224

-3-

of the Council, and a copy must be supplied within 120 hours or 5
days, following a lawful request.

. An anti-drugs policy agreed with the Police must be implemented

and in operation at all times whilst the Premises is open to the
public. The Premises Licence Holder and/or nominated person will
install and maintain a secure drugs drop safe, in accordance with
Police requirements. Provision is made for random searches and
drug testing procedures of patrons in accordance with Police
requirements.

. Whenever regulated entertainment is provided at the Premises, a

minimum of 2 SIA registered door supervisors will be on duty from
30 minutes before the advertised start time of the entertainment
and until 30 minutes after the end of the regulated entertainment.

At all other times, the Premises Licence Holder and/or a nominated
person will risk assess the need for door supervisors and provide
door supervision between such times and in such numbers as is
required by the risk assessment. A written document will be
retained and provided to the Police and/or authorised officer(s) of
the Council, on request.

. A daily register of security personnel, if used, will be maintained.

The register shall show the: name; address; and licence number of
each door supervisor, and the date(s) and time(s) that they operate.
The register must be kept for inspection by the Police and/or
authorised officer(s) of the Council.

. The Premises Licence Holder and/or a nominated person shall

ensure that all SIA registered door supervisors will wear
conspicuous clothing which identifies them as such. The SIA
registered door supervisors shall display their SIA licence in a
reflective armband whilst on duty.

When regulated entertainment is provided, the Premises Licence
Holder shall operate and maintain a suitable counting system to
monitor the number of persons entering and exiting the Premises to
ensure that the maximum capacity is not exceeded.

The Premises shall maintain a log of all incidents occurring at or in
the vicinity of the Premises. This log will include details of any:
disorder; assaults; theft; possession/supply of illegal substances;
and persons ejected or refused entry to the Premises. The log shall
record the: date and time of the incident; personnel involved and
reporting the incident; action taken; and, where appropriate, the

Tudalen7



120224

-4 -

outcome of the incident. This must be kept available for inspection
by the Police and/or authorised officer(s) of the Council, at all
reasonable times.

. All entries in the incident log must be made prior to Premises staff,

including SIA door staff, leaving the Premises and the incident log
must not be removed from the Premises. The included log must not
be removed from the Premises other than by the Police and/or
authorised officer(s) of the Council.

All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 21:00
hours, or at any time when regulated entertainment takes place,
except for the immediate access and egress of persons.

. The Premises Licence Holder and/or a nhominated person shall co-

operate with the Police in carrying out any crime reduction or
detection operation at or in connection with the Premises. For
example, use of drugs, detection dogs, drugs itemiser etc.

. No persons under the age of 18 shall be permitted to enter the

Premises when regulated entertainment is taking place.

. The Premises Licence Holder or nominated person will, at the end

of each calendar month, provide copies of the incident book and
refusal logs to the Police, on request.

. Premises staff will receive accredited training in age related

products before making sales of alcohol. Training will include their
responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003, refresher training will
take place at not less than 6 monthly intervals. All training will be
recorded in either written or electronic format, and made available
to the Police and/or authorised officer(s) of the Council, on request.

. By virtue of s177A of the Licensing Act 2003, the conditions of the

Premises Licence relating to regulated entertainment shall be in
force between 08:00 and 23:00 hours.

There shall be no external amplified sound in external areas of the
Premises (including the beer garden, car park, and/or anywhere
else outside the curtilage of the building). This provision also
includes portable amplifiers and Bluetooth speakers from both
Premises staff and customers.

. The Premises Licence Holder and/or a nominated person and/or

SIA door staff, shall carry out proactive noise observations outside

Tudalen8



6.

-5-

of the Premises, at least once an hour, whilst regulated
entertainment is provided and take any necessary remedial action.

t. A written record of proactive noise observations outside the
Premises shall be kept of the times, dates, any issues discovered
and, where applicable, what remedial action was taken. These
records shall be kept for a minimum of 31 days. Records must be
made available, upon request, for inspection to an authorised
officer of the Council at all times the Premises is open.

u. Speakers shall not be located at the entrance and exit of the
Premises, or outside the building.

Urgent ltems

There were no urgent items.

Access to Meeting - Exclusion of the Public

Resolved:

Not for publication pursuant to Section 100BA (2) & (7) of the Local
Government Act 1972 and the undermentioned Exempt Paragraph 13
of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the above Act. In all the circumstances
of the case, pursuant to Regulation 14 of the Licensing Act 2003
(Hearing) Regulations 2005, the public interest in maintaining the
exemption, is considered to outweigh the public interest in disclosing
the information.

Appendix 8 - Exempt under paragraph 13 Part 4 of Schedule 12A

100BA (2) & (7) of the Local Government Act 1972

Resolved:

Appendix 8 to this report only: Not for publication pursuant to Section
100BA (2) & (7) of the Local Government Act 1972 and the
undermentioned Exempt Paragraph 13 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to
the above Act. In all the circumstances of the case, pursuant to
Regulation 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearing) Regulations 2005,
the public interest in maintaining the exemption, is considered to
outweigh the public interest in disclosing the information.

120224 Tudalen9



This page is intentionally left blank

Tudalen10



Eitem yr Agenda4

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Licensing and Gambling Acts Committee

19" August 2024

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services — Mr Craig Griffiths

Matter for Decision

Wards Affected: All
Gambling Act 2005 - Review of Gambling Policy

Purpose of the Report

To consider the draft revised Gambling Policy prior to submission to Council.

Executive Summary

The Council, as the Licensing Authority, under the provisions of the Gambling
Act 2005 is required to review its Gambling Policy every 3 years.

Prior to adopting a new Gambling Policy, the Licensing Authority must
undertake a mandatory consultation exercise.

Members are being asked to consider whether any amendments are required to
be made to the revised draft Gambling Policy prior to submission to Council for
approval to start the consultation exercise.

Background

The Council, as the Licensing Authority under the provisions of the Gambling Act
2005 is required to review its Gambling Policy every 3 years.

Tudalenll



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

The current Gambling Policy was adopted at Council on the 22" December
2021.

The revised Gambling Policy must be issued for consultation and adopted by
Council before publication. The Policy must be published at least 4 weeks
before it comes into effect on the 31st January 2025.

Officer Report

The Department for Culture, Media and Sport (“DCMS”) published its Gambling
White Paper in April 2023, which sets out the Government’s plans for
modernising the regulation of the gambling sector. The DCMS are still analysing
evidence submitted as part of the consultation process and it is not yet known
what changes will be implemented.

Advice presented by a Gambling Commission officer at the most recent Wales
Licensing Expert Panel meeting, suggested that Local Authorities make only
minor amendments to their policies, such as updating dates, contact details and
localised references.

As a consequence, the majority of the policy remains unchanged, except for
updating dates and references to the Council’s Corporate Plan and Neath Port
Talbot Public Services Board.

A copy of the draft revised Gambling Policy showing these changes is attached
at Appendix 1 to this report, these changes are identified in red and any text to
be removed is shown by striking through.

At the time of adoption of the current Gambling Policy, Council also determined
to adopt a "no casino" policy. This decision is also required to be reviewed and
will be submitted for determination when the final document is considered.

Before a revised Gambling Policy can take effect, the Licensing Authority must
carry out a mandatory consultation exercise. The Gambling Act 2005 specifies
statutory consultees however it is proposed that in addition to these, a range of
interested parties are also consulted with; these are indicated within the revised
draft policy.

It is considered that the consultation process should be as wide ranging as
possible, and allow adequate time for responses to be submitted, following
which comments by consultees and any appropriate revisions to the document

Tudalenl?2



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

will be brought back to a meeting of Council for consideration. It is proposed
that the consultation exercise lasts for 6 weeks.

Members are being asked to consider whether any amendments are required to
be made to the revised draft Gambling Policy prior to submission to Council for
approval to start the consultation exercise.

Financial Impact

Not applicable

Integrated Impact Assessment

A first stage Impact Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in
discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 2010, the Welsh
Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. The first
stage assessment, attached at Appendix 2, has indicated that a more in-depth
assessment is not required.

Legal Impacts

Section 349 Gambling Act 2005 requires the Council to prepare and publish a
statement of the principles that it proposes to apply in exercising its function
under the Gambling Act 2005, before each successive period of three years.

Risk Management

Not applicable

Consultation

Consultation will be undertaken within the context set out in this report.

Recommendation

That members consider whether any amendments are required to the revised
draft Gambling Policy prior to submission to Council.

Tudalenl13



22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

Reasons for Proposed Decision

In order to comply with the legal requirements as set out in the Gambling Act

2005

Implementation of Decision

The decision is for immediate implementation.

Appendices
Appendix 1 - Revised draft Gambling Policy 2025

Appendix 2 - Integrated Impact Assessment Screening

List of Background Papers

Neath Port Talbot CBC Gambling Policy 2021

Officer Contact

Craig Griffiths

Head of Legal and Democratic Services
Tel (01639) 763767

Email c.griffiths2@npt.gov.uk

Neil Chapple

Legal Regulatory Manager
Tel (01639) 763050

Email n.chapple@npt.gov.uk

Tudalenl14


mailto:c.griffiths2@npt.gov.uk
mailto:n.chapple@npt.gov.uk

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNCIL

GAMBLING ACT 2005

GAMBLING POLICY 2025

Effective from 31° January 2025

Legal Regulatory Services
Neath Port Talbot Council
Civic Centre

Port Talbot

SA13 1PJ

Tel: 01639 763050
Fax: 01639 763059
e-mail LRS@npt.gov.uk

Further copies may be obtained from the above address, or from
the website www.npt.qov.uk/Irs

Approved by Council XX December 2024

1
Tudalenl15


mailto:LRS@npt.gov.uk
http://www.npt.gov.uk/lrs

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNCIL

GAMBLING POLICY

Part A Page
1.0. Introduction 4
2.0. Consultation 5
3.0. Neath Port Talbot Council Local Area Profile 6
4.0. Licensing Objectives 7
5.0. Licensing Authority Functions 7
6.0. Responsible Authorities 9
7.0. Interested Parties 9
8.0. Exchange of Information 10
9.0. Enforcement 11
10.0 Fundamental Rights 12
11.0. Integrating Strategies and Avoiding Duplication 13
12.0. Sustainable Development Community Strategy 13
Part B — Premises Licences

13.0. General Principles 15
14.0. Appropriate Licence Environment 17
15.0. Premises “Ready for Gambling” 18
16.0. Other Considerations 19
17.0. Adult Gaming Centres 24
18.0. (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres 25
19.0. Casinos 27
20.0. Bingo Premises 27
21.0 Betting Premises 28
22.0 Travelling Fairs 28
23.0. Tracks 29
24.0. Provisional Statements 31
25.0. Reviews 32
Part C — Permits/Temporary Use Notices & Occasional

Use Notices

26.0. Family Entertainment Centre Permit 34
27.0. Alcohol Licensed Premises 35
28.0. Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 36
29.0. Prize Gaming Permits 37
30.0. Temporary Use Notices 38
31.0. Occasional Use Notices 39
32.0 Small Society Lotteries 39
Part D - Decision Making and Enforcement

33.0. Administration, Exercise and Delegation of Functions 41

2
Tudalenl6




34.0. Appeals Procedure 41
35.0. Complaints Against Licensed Premises 42
36.0. lllegally Sited Gaming Machines 42
Part E — Codes of Practice and Risk Assessments
37.0. Overview 43
38.0 Types of Code Provision 44
39.0 Risk Assessments 44
1) Betting Tack Premises 47
i) Significant Changes 47
i) Variations 48
Iv) Regular Review of Risk Assessments 49
v) Local Risks and Control Measures 49
40.0 Further Information 50
APPENDICES
APPENDIX 1 — Map of Neath Port Talbot 52
APPENDIX 2 — Consultees 53
APPENDIX 3 — Delegated powers 54

3
Tudalenl7




1.0.

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNCIL
Gambling Act 2005

Gambling Policy

PART A

Introduction

The Gambling Act 2005 requires the Council (hereafter referred
to as the “Licensing Authority”) to prepare and publish a
“Statement of Licensing Policy” known as the Gambling Policy
that sets out the principles the Licensing Authority proposes to
apply in exercising its licensing functions under the Act.

This Policy takes effect on 315 January 2025. This Licensing
Authority will update and publish a new Licensing Policy
whenever necessary but in any case within 3 years of the date of
this Policy, and will fully consult with partners, trade associations
and residents groups as appropriate at that time, any
representations received will be considered at that time.

However, where updates are required due to changes in national
legislation, statutory guidance or contact details the Licensing
Authority reserves the right to amend this policy without
consultation where it is necessary to ensure the policy

reflects national legislation or statutory guidance.

In producing the final Policy Statement the Licensing Authority
declares that it has had regard to the licensing objectives of the
Gambling Act 2005, the Guidance to Licensing Authorities issued
by the Gambling Commission, any codes of practice and any
responses from those consulted on the Policy Statement.

The Licensing Authority has a legal obligation to comply with all
legislation that promotes equality it has a policy in place to
promote equality to all. Licensing of persons and premises
under the Gambling Act 2005 will actively promote equality of
service and enforcement to all members of the community.

The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European
Convention on Human Rights and makes it unlawful for a local
authority to act in a way that is incompatible with such a right.
The Licensing Authority will have regard to the Human Rights Act

4
Tudalenl18



1.7.

1.8.

2.0.

2.1.

2.2.

when considering any licensing issues, and particularly in respect
of the way in which applications are considered and enforcement
activities are carried out.

The Licensing Authority acknowledges that it may need to depart
from this Policy and from the guidance issued under the Act in
individual and exceptional circumstances, and where the case
merits such a decision in the interests of the promotion of the
licensing objectives. Any such decision will be taken in
consultation with the appropriate legal advisors for the Licensing
Authority, and the reasons for any such departure will be fully
recorded.

It should be noted that this Policy will not override the right of any
person to make an application, make representation about an
application, or apply for a review of a licence, as each will be
considered on its own merits and according to the statutory
requirements of the Gambling Act 2005.

Consultation

In accordance with the requirements of the Act, the Licensing
Authority has consulted widely before publishing this Policy. A
list of consultees is reproduced at Appendix 2. The consultation
was carried out between September and November 2024.

The Policy was approved at a meeting of the full Council on XX
December 2024 and was published via our website on the XX
December 2024. Copies have been placed in the public libraries
of the area as well as being available in the Civic Centres at
Neath and Port Talbot. Should you have any comments as
regards this Gambling Policy, or wish to see the full list of
comments and the consideration by the authority of those
comments then please send them via e- mail or letter to:-

Legal Regulatory Manager
Legal Regulatory Services
Civic Centre

Port Talbot

SA13 1PJ
LRS@npt.gov.uk

5
Tudalenl19


mailto:LRS@npt.gov.uk

3.0.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

Neath Port Talbot Council Local Area Profile

. 2 :
IJ_eatll PortFalbet I_|a_s a geegna_plneal area g.l MLk |

IEHI“HI Iam' gle_stl ceunReH “II 'Y alesl “'EI.' E; population-6i-144,386

The Council has adopted a Corporate Plan 2024-2027 —
“Working towards a more prosperous, fairer and greener
NPT” which sets out the Council’s four well-being objectives
to maximise the Council’s contribution to the seven national
well-being goals, whilst also discharging its duty to improve
the economic environmental, social, and cultural well-being
of people living in Neath Port Talbot. For each well-being
objective, long term (20 year) outcomes have been set along
with what the Council is aiming to achieve over the next
three years. The Council’s four well-being objectives are:

e All children get the best start in life,

e All communities are thriving and sustainable,

e Our local environment, culture and heritage can be
enjoyed by future generations,

e Jobs and skills

The Neath Port Talbot Public Services Board Well-being Plan
— 2023-2028 sets out the Public Services Board’s long-term
vision for the area. The Public Services Board has adopted
the Council’s four well-being objectives and the Plan sets
out the priorities for action over the next 5 years under each
of those wellbeing objectives.

The Licensing Authority expects that those who operate or wish
to operate gambling premises within Neath Port Talbot are
familiar with both the Council’s Corporate Plan and the Public
Services Board Well-being Plan and have regard to the well-
being objectives that the Council and the Board are trying to
achieve.

Operators will be expected to have considered the appropriate
well-being objectives within their risk assessments as outlined in
paragraph 39 of this policy, paying particular attention to the
protection of children from harm and the high levels of
deprivation and personal debt within Neath Port Talbot.

6
Tudalen20



4.0.

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

5.0.

5.1.

Licensing Objectives

In exercising most of their functions under the Gambling Act 2005
(the Act), the Licensing Authority must have regard to the
licensing objectives as set out in Section 1 of the Act and
reproduced below: -

o Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or
disorder, being associated with crime or disorder, or being
used to support crime.

o Ensuring that gambling is being conducted in a fair and
open way.

. Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from
being harmed or exploited by gambling.

It should be noted that the Gambling Commission has stated
“The requirements in relation to children is explicitly to protect
them from being harmed or exploited by gambling”.

The Licensing Authority is aware that as per Section 153 of the
Act, in making decisions about premises licences and temporary
use notices, it should aim to permit the use of premises for
gambling in so far as it thinks it:-

In accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the
Gambling Commission;

In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the
Gambling Commission;

Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and

In accordance with the authority’s statement of licensing policy

Licensing Authority Functions

Under the Act this Licensing Authority will be responsible for the
following:

o Issuing Premises Licences — Where gambling activities are
to take place.

7
Tudalen21



5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

o Issue Provisional Statements - For premises which are to
be constructed or adapted for gambling activities.

o Regulate Club Gaming Permits and or Club Machine
Permits for members clubs and miners’ welfare institutes
who wish to undertake certain gaming activities.

o Issue_Club Machine Permits — for Commercial Clubs.

o Grant Permits for the use of certain lower stake gaming
machines at unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres.

o Receive notifications from alcohol licensed premises (under
the Licensing Act 2003) for the use of two or fewer gaming
machines.

o Issue Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits for
premises licensed to sell/supply alcohol for consumption on
the licensed premises, under the Licensing Act 2003,
where more than two machines are required.

. Registration of lotteries which are small society lotteries

below prescribed thresholds.

Issue Prize Gaming Permits.

Receive and Endorse Temporary Use Notices

Receive Occasional Use Notices.

Provide information to the Gambling Commission regarding

details of licences issued (see section 7.0. on information

exchange).

o Maintain registers of the permits and licences that are
issued under these functions.

The licensing authority in order to deal efficiently with
applications for premises licences, permits, temporary and
occasional use notices, reviews, etc has prescribed a list of
delegated functions. This is shown at appendix 3.

It should be noted that the Licensing Authority will not be involved
in licensing remote gambling. This will fall to the Gambling
Commission via Operating Licences.

The Licensing Authority recognises that the licensing function is
only one means of promoting delivery of the three objectives and
should not therefore be seen as a means for solving all problems
within the community. The Licensing Authority will therefore
continue to work in partnership with neighbouring authorities,
South Wales Police, Public Health local businesses, local people
and those involved in child protection to promote the licensing
objectives as outlined. In addition, the Licensing Authority

8
Tudalen22



6.0.

6.1.

6.2.

7.0.

7.1.

7.2

recognises its duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder
Act 1998, with regard to the prevention of crime and disorder.

Responsible Authorities

The Licensing Authority is required by regulations to state the
principles it will apply in exercising its powers under Section
157(h) of the Act to designate, in writing, a body which is
competent to advise the authority about the protection of
children from harm. The principles are:

o The need for the body to be responsible for an area
covering the whole of the Licensing Authority’s area, and

o The need for the body to be answerable to democratically
elected persons, rather than any particular vested interest

group.

In accordance with the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for
Local Authorities, this authority designates the Western Bay
Safeguarding Children Board for this purpose.

The contact details of all the Responsible Authorities under the
Gambling Act 2005 are available on the Licensing Authority’s
website at: www.npt.gov.uk/licensing.

Interested Parties

Interested parties can make representations about licence
applications, or apply for a review of an existing licence. These
parties are defined in the Gambling Act as follows:-

“For the purposes of this Part, a person is an interested party in
relation to an application for or in respect of a premises licence if,
in the opinion of the Licensing Authority which issues the licence
or to which the application is made, the person —

a) lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be
affected by the authorised activities,

b) has business interests that might be affected by the
authorised activities, or

c) represents persons who satisfy paragraph (a) or (b)”.

The Licensing Authority is required by regulations to state the
principles it will apply in exercising its powers under the

9
Tudalen23


http://www.npt.gov.uk/licensing

8.0.

8.1.

8.2.

Gambling Act 2005 to determine whether a person is an
interested party. The principles are:

Each case will be decided upon its merits. This authority will not
apply a rigid rule to its decision making, but will consider the
examples of considerations provided in the Gambling
Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities.

It will also consider the Gambling Commission’s Guidance that
“has business interests” should be given the widest possible
interpretation and include partnerships, charities, faith groups
and medical practices

Interested parties can be persons who are democratically elected
such as Councillors and MP’s. No specific evidence of being
asked to represent an interested person will be required as long
as the Councillor/MP represents the ward likely to be affected.
Likewise parish/community councils likely to be affected will be
considered to be interested parties. Other than these persons,
this Authority will require written evidence that a person
‘represents’ someone who either lives sufficiently close to the
premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised activities
and/or has business interests that might be affected by the
authorised activities. A letter from one of these persons,
requesting that representation is sufficient.

If individuals wish to approach Councillors to ask them to
represent their views then care should be taken that the
Councillors are not part of the Licensing Committee dealing with
the licence application. If there are any doubts then please
contact the Legal Regulatory Services team on 01639 763050

(ring back service) or e-mail LRS@npt.gov.uk

Exchange of Information

Licensing authorities are required to include in their policy
statement the principles to be applied by the Authority in
exercising the functions under sections 29 and 30 of the Act with
respect to the exchange of information between it and the
Gambling Commission, and the functions under Section 350 of
the Act with the respect to the exchange of information between it
and the other persons listed in Schedule 6 to the Act.

The principle that this Licensing Authority applies is that it will act
in accordance with the provisions of the Gambling Act 2005 in its

10
Tudalen24


mailto:LRS@npt.gov.uk

exchange of information which includes the provision that data
protection legislation will not be contravened. The Licensing
Authority will also have regard to any guidance issued by the
Gambling Commission on this matter, as well as any relevant
regulations issued by the Secretary of State under the powers
provided in the Gambling Act 2005.

8.3. Should any protocols be established as regards information
exchange with other bodies, then they will be made available.

9.0. Enforcement

9.1. Licensing Authorities are required by regulation under the
Gambling Act 2005 to state the principles to be applied by the
authority in exercising the functions under Part 15 of the Act with
respect to the inspection of premises; and the powers under
section 346 of the Act to institute criminal proceedings in respect
of the offences specified.

9.2. The Licensing Authority’s principles are that:

It will be guided by the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to
Local Authorities, the Regulators Code and the Licensing
Authority’s enforcement policy. It will endeavour to be:

o Proportionate: regulators should only intervene when
necessary: remedies should be appropriate to the risk
posed, and costs identified and minimised;

o Accountable: regulators must be able to justify decisions,
and be subject to public scrutiny;

o Consistent: rules and standards must be joined up and
implemented fairly;

o Transparent: regulators should be open, and keep
regulations simple and user friendly; and

o Targeted: regulation should be focused on the problem,
and minimise side effects

9.3. The Licensing Authority will endeavour to avoid duplication with
other regulatory regimes so far as possible.

9.4. The Licensing Authority has implemented a risk-based inspection
programme based on:-

11
Tudalen25



9.5.

9.6.

9.7.

The Licensing Objectives

Relevant Codes of Practice

Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission

The principles set out in this statement of licensing policy
The Licensing Authority’s enforcement policy

The main enforcement and compliance role for the Licensing
Authority in terms of the Gambling Act 2005 will be to ensure
compliance with the premises licences and other permissions
which is authorises. The Gambling Concerns about manufacture,
supply or repair of gaming machines will not be dealt with by the
Licensing Authority, but should be notified to the Gambling
Commission.

The Licensing Authority will take account of the Gambling
Commissions guidance document issued in February 2015 (or any
subsequent amendments) ‘Approach to Test Purchasing’ when
considering making test purchases at gambling premises. The
Licensing Authority will also follow its own policies and procedures
regarding the use of underage test purchasers.

The Licensing Authority will also keep itself informed of
developments as regards the work of the Better Regulation
Executive in its consideration of the regulatory functions of local
authorities.

10.0. Fundamental Rights

10.1. Under the terms of the Act any individual/company may apply for

a variety of permissions and have their applications considered
on their individual merits. Equally, any Interested Party or
Responsible Authority has a right to make relevant
representations on an application or to seek a review of a licence
or certificate where provision has been made for them to do so in
the Act.

10.2. Applicants and those making relevant representations in respect

of applications to the Licensing Authority have a right of appeal to
the Magistrates Court against the decisions of the Licensing
Authority.

12
Tudalen26



11.0.

11.1.

11.2.

12.0.

12.1.

Integrating Strateqgies and Avoiding Duplication

By consulting widely prior to this Policy Statement being
published, the Licensing Authority will take full account of local
policies covering crime prevention, culture, transport, planning
and tourism as part of an integrated strategy for the Council,
Police and other agencies. Many of these strategies may not be
directly related to the promotion of the three licensing objectives,
but may indirectly impact upon them.

When considering any application, the Licensing Authority will
avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes so far as
possible. Therefore, the Licensing Authority will not attach
conditions to a licence unless they are considered necessary,
reasonable and proportionate to the use of premises for
gambling consistent with the licensing objectives.

Sustainable Development Community Strategy

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires
Local Authorities in Wales to think about the long-term impact of
their decisions, to work better with people, communities and each
other, and to prevent persistent problems, such as poverty,
health inequalities and climate change. The Act clearly supports
and actively promotes the licensing objectives. This Act links
specifically to the prevention of crime and disorder and public
nuisance. The Licensing Authority will consider the five ways of
working contained under this Act namely:

Long Term (how we support the long term well-being of people) —
The Licensing Authority recognises the need for people to be
able to enjoy their leisure time and socialise with friends and
family in a diverse and vibrant environment. This has to be
balanced however against the need to ensure that children are
protected from the harms of gambling and ensuring that
operators are able to identify vulnerable adults with gambling
addictions / problems, to offer help, guidance and support
through appropriate signposting.

Integration (impacts upon our wellbeing objectives) — The
Licensing Authority will ensure that children and adults with
gambling addictions / problems are protected. Premises offer
Gambling activities will be expected to have given proper
consideration in operating schedules as to how they will protect
children and vulnerable adults on their premises. Likewise,

13
Tudalen27



12.2.

12.3.

operating schedules will be expected to have given consideration
to ensuring that their business does not impact negatively on
those that live in the vicinity of the premises.

Involvement (how people have been involved) — The Licensing
Authority has undertaken an extensive, far reaching consultation
exercise in developing this policy.

Collaboration (Working with other services / organisations) — The
Licensing Authority works with other Local Authorities and
partner agencies across Wales to develop consistent policies and
processes. Membership of the Institute of Licensing and
representation on the All Wales Licensing Expert Panel enables
the Licensing Authority to work with other local authorities,
partner agencies and trade bodies across Wales to develop
consistent policies and processes in order to achieve its
objectives.

Prevention (how problems will be prevented from occurring or
getting worse) — The Licensing Authority will carefully consider all
applications to ensure the licensing objectives set-out in the Act
are promoted at all times. Where premises are found to not be
operating in a safe and responsible manner, the Licensing
Authority will work with its partners to take remedial action,
including formal enforcement to swiftly resolve any issues.

The Neath Port Talbot Public Services Board involving the Local
Authority and representatives from a range of partner
organisations, are responsible for achievement of locally set well-
being objectives which must address the national well-being
goals specified in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales)
Act 2015.

Under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 local authorities must
have regard to the likely effect of the exercise of their functions
on, and do all they can to prevent crime and disorder in the area.
The Licensing Authority will have particular regard to the likely
impact of licensing on related crime and disorder in the area,
particularly when considering the location, impact, operation and
management of all proposed licence/permit applications,
renewals and variations of conditions.

14
Tudalen28



13.0.

13.1.

13.2.

13.3.

13.4.

13.5.

Part B — Premises Licences

General Principles

Premises licences will be subject to the requirements set-out in
the Gambling Act 2005 and regulations, as well as specific
mandatory and default conditions which are detailed in
regulations issued by the Secretary of State. Licensing
authorities are able to exclude default conditions and also attach
others, where it is believed to be appropriate.

The Licensing Authority is aware that in making decisions about
premises licences it should aim to permit the use of premises for
gambling in so far as it thinks it is:-

In accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by

the Gambling Commission;

¢ In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the
Gambling Commission;

e Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and

¢ |In accordance with the authority’s statement of licensing

policy

It is appreciated that moral objections to gambling are not a valid
reason to reject applications for premises licences (except as
regards any ‘no casino resolution’ — see section on Casinos
below) and also that unmet demand is not a criterion for a
Licensing Authority.

The Licence Conditions and Code of Practice (LCCP) issued by
the Gambling Commission commencing in May 2015 places
further onus on premises to complete a risk assessment based
on code 8, the social responsibility code. The Licensing
Authority will have regard to this code when considering
applications.

This Licensing Authority also notes Gambling Commission
guidance on ensuring that betting is the primary activity of a
licensed premises. Gaming machines may be made available for
use in licensed betting premises only at times when there are
also sufficient facilities for betting available. Operators will need
to demonstrate that betting will continue to be the primary activity
of the premises when seeking variations to licenses.

15
Tudalen29



13.6. Premises are defined in the Act as including “any place”. Section
152 therefore prevents more than one premises licence applying
to “any place”. However, it is possible for a single building to be
subject to more than one premises licence, provided they are for
different parts of the building and the different parts of the
building can be reasonably regarded as being separate
premises. This makes provision for large multiple unit premises
such as a pleasure park, shopping mall etc to obtain discrete
premises licences where appropriate safeguards are in place.
However, the Licensing Authority will pay particular attention if
there are issues about sub-division of a single building and will
ensure that mandatory conditions relating to access between
premises are observed.

13.7. The Gambling Commission states in its Guidance to Licensing
Authorities that “in most cases the expectation is that a single
building will be the subject of an application for a licence e.g. 32
High Street. But that does not mean that 32 High Street cannot
be the subject of separate premises licences for the basement
and ground floor if they are configured acceptably. Whether
different parts of a building can be properly regarded as being
separate premises will depend on the circumstances. The
location of the premises will clearly be an important consideration
and the suitability of the division is likely to be a matter for
discussion between the operator and the licensing officer.
However, the Commission does not consider that areas of a
building that are artificially or temporarily separated for example
by ropes or moveable partitions can properly be regarded as
different premises”.

13.8. The Licensing Authority takes particular note of the Gambling
Commission’s Guidance to Local Authorities which states that:

13.9. Licensing authorities should take particular care in considering
applications for multiple licences for a building and those
relating to a discrete part of a building used for other (non-
gambling) purposes. In particular they should be aware of the
following:

e The third licensing objective seeks to protect children from
being harmed by gambling. In practice that means not only
preventing them from taking part in gambling, but also
preventing them from being in close proximity to
gambling. Therefore premises should be configured so
that children are not invited to participate in, have

16
Tudalen30



accidental access to or closely observe gambling where
they are prohibited from participating.

e Entrances to and exits from parts of a building covered by
one or more premises licences should be separate and
identifiable so that the separation of different premises is
not compromised and people do not “drift” into a gambling
area. In this context it should normally be possible to
access the premises without going through another
licensed premise or premises with a permit.

e Customers should be able to participate in the activity
named on the premises licence.

13.10. The Guidance also gives a list of factors which the Licensing

14.0.

14.1.

14.2.

14.3.

Authority should be aware of, which may include:

e Do the premises have a separate registration for business
rates

¢ Is the premises’ neighbouring premises owned by the same
person or someone else?

e Can each of the premises be accessed from the street or a
public passageway?

e Can the premises only be accessed from any other
gambling premises?

Appropriate Licence Environment

The Guidance to Local Authorities and the Licence Conditions
and Codes of Practice (LCCP) set out additional matters that the
Licensing Authority should take into account when considering
licence applications for premises licences.

Guidance prescribes restrictions on gambling activities on
premises, previously known as primary gambling activity. The
Licensing Authority will consider any application based on the
provisions in these codes and guidance.

Where gambling facilities are provided at premises as a
supplementary activity to the main purpose of the premises;
e.g. motorway service areas and shopping malls, the Licensing
Authority will expect the gambling area to be clearly defined

to ensure that customers are fully aware that they are

17
Tudalen31



14.4.

15.0.

15.1.

15.2.

15.3.

15.4.

15.5.

making a choice to enter into the gambling premises, and that
the premises is adequately supervised at all times.

The Licensing Authority will consider these and any other
relevant factors in making its decision, depending on all the
circumstances of the case

Premises “Ready for Gambling”

The Guidance states that a licence to use premises for gambling
should only be issued in relation to premises that the licensing
authority can be satisfied are going to be ready to be used for
gambling in the reasonably near future, consistent with the
scale of building or alterations required before the premises

are brought into use.

If the construction of a premises is not yet complete, or if they
need alteration, or if the applicant does not yet have right to
occupy them, then an application for a provisional statement
should be made instead.

In deciding whether a premises licence can be granted where
there are outstanding construction or alteration works at a
premises, this authority will determine applications on their
merits, applying a two stage consideration process.

e First, whether the premises ought to be permitted to be
used for gambling

e Second, whether appropriate conditions can be put in place
to cater for the situation that the premises are not yet in the
state in which they ought to be before gambling takes
place.

Applicants should note that this authority is entitled to decide that
it is appropriate to grant a licence subject to conditions, but it is
not obliged to grant such a licence.

More detailed examples of the circumstances in which such a
licence may be granted can be found in the Guidance.

18
Tudalen32



16.0. Other Considerations

16.1.

16.2.

16.3.

Location:

The Licensing Authority is aware that demand issues cannot be
considered with regard to the location of premises but that
considerations in terms of the licensing objectives can. This
authority will pay particular attention to the protection of children
and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by
gambling, as well as issue of crime and disorder. Should any
specific policy be decided upon as regards areas where gambling
premises should not be located, this statement will be updated. It
should be noted that any such policy does not preclude any
application being made and each application will be decided on
its merits, with the onus upon the applicant showing how
potential concerns can be overcome.

Planning:

The Gambling Commissions Guidance to Licensing Authorities
states:

In determining applications the Licensing Authority has a duty to
take into consideration all relevant matters and not to take into
consideration any irrelevant matters, i.e. those not related to
gambling and the licensing objectives. One example of an
irrelevant matter would be the likelihood of the applicant
obtaining planning permission or building regulations approval for
their proposal.

This authority will not take into account irrelevant matters as per
the above guidance. In addition the authority notes the
following excerpt from the Guidance:

When dealing with a premises licence application for

finished buildings, the Licensing Authority should not take into
account whether those buildings have or comply with the
necessary planning or building consents. Those matters should
be dealt with under relevant planning control and building
regulation powers, and not form part of the consideration for the
premises licence. Section 210 of the 2005 Act prevents licensing
authorities taking into account the likelihood of the proposal by
the applicant obtaining planning or building consent when
considering a premises licence application. Equally the grant of
a gambling premises licence does not prejudice or prevent any

19
Tudalen33



16.4.

16.5.

16.6.

16.7.

action that may be appropriate under the law relating to planning
or building.

Duplication with other regulatory regimes:

This Licensing Authority seeks to avoid any duplication with other
statutory/regulatory systems where possible, including planning.
This authority will not consider whether a licence application is
likely to be planning permission or building regulations approval
in its consideration of it. It will however, listen to and consider
carefully any concerns about conditions which are not able to be
met by licensees due to planning restrictions, should such a
situation arise.

When dealing with a premises licence application for finished
buildings, this authority will not take into account whether those
buildings have to comply with the necessary planning or building
consents. Fire or health & safety risks will not be taken into
account, as these matters are dealt with under relevant
planning, building and other regulations and must not form

part of the consideration for the premises licence.

Licensing objectives:

Premises licences granted must be reasonably consistent with
the licensing objectives. With regard to these objectives, this
Licensing Authority has considered the Gambling Commission’s
Guidance to Local Authorities and some comments are made
below.

Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or
disorder, being associated with crime or disorder or being
used to support crime

This Licensing Authority is aware that the Gambling Commission
takes a leading role in preventing gambling from being a source
of crime. It is however envisaged that licensing authorities
should pay attention to the proposed location of gambling
premises in terms of this licensing objective. Thus, where an
area has known high levels of organised crime, this authority will
consider carefully whether gambling premises are suitable to be
located there and whether conditions may be suitable such as
the provision of door supervisors. The Licensing Authority is
aware of the need to make a distinction between disorder and

20
Tudalen34



16.8.

16.9.

16.10.

16.11.

16.12.

16.13.

nuisance. It will consider factors such as whether police
assistance was required, the nature of any incident so as to
make that distinction.

Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way:

The Licensing Authority has noted that the Gambling
Commission’s advice that it would generally not expect licensing
authorities to become concerned with ensuring that gambling is
conducted in a fair and open way as this will be addressed via
operating and personal licences.

Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being
harmed or exploited by gambling:

The Licensing Authority notes the Gambling Commission’s
guidance that this objective means preventing children from
taking part in gambling (as well as restriction of advertising so
that gambling products are not aimed at, or are particularly
attractive to children). The Licensing Authority will therefore
consider, whether specific measures are required at particular
premises, with regard to this licensing objective. Appropriate
measures may include supervision of entrances/machines,
segregation of areas etc.

This Licensing Authority is also aware of the Gambling
Commission Codes of Practice as regards this licensing
objective, in relation to specific premises.

As regards the term “vulnerable persons” it is noted that the
Gambling Commission is not seeking to offer a definition, but
states that “it will for regulatory purposes assume that this group
includes people who gamble more than they want to; people who
are gambling beyond their means; and people who may not be
able to make informed or balanced decisions about gambling due
to a mental impairment, alcohol or drugs”. The Licensing
Authority will consider this licensing objective on a case by case
basis.

The Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice (LCCP)
prescribe how operators must prevent children from using

age restricted gaming or gambling activities, particularly where
gaming machines are licensed.

In particular operators must ensure that;

21
Tudalen35



16.14.

16.15.

16.16.

16.17.

16.18.

16.19.

o all staff are trained,

e that all customers are supervised when on gambling
premises

e must have procedures for identifying customers who are at
risk of gambling related harm and also where to signpost
people for support

The Licensing Authority will expect all operators to have policies
and procedures in place as required by the LCCP codes on
social responsibility to cover all aspects of the code, in
particular staff training records and self-exclusion records.

Further provisions with regard to self-exclusion and marketing
are included in the social responsibility code. The Licensing

Authority will take all conditions and codes into account when
considering applications or performing enforcement activities.

The Licensing Authority will have regard to the Chief Medical
Officer for Wales report to support the licensing objective to
protect children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed
or exploited by gambling.

The Licensing Authority would expect applicants and licence
holders to carry out the necessary checks on all relevant
members of staff to ensure their suitability for employment,
particularly in respect of premises where children and vulnerable
people have access.

Conditions:

Any conditions attached to licences by this Licensing Authority
will be proportionate and will be:
¢ relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable
as a gambling facility;
e directly related to the premises and the type of licence
applied for;
e fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of
premises; and
e reasonable in all other respects.

Decisions upon individual conditions will be made on a case by
case basis, although there will be a number of measures this

22
Tudalen36



16.20.

16.21.

Licensing Authority will consider utilising should there be a
perceived need, such as the use of supervisors, appropriate
signage for adult only areas etc. Specific regard will be against
the local risk assessment for each premises, when making such
decisions. There are specific comments made in this regard
under some of the licence types below. The Licensing Authority
will also expect the licence applicant to offer his/her own
suggestions as to the way in which the licensing objectives can
be met effectively, in conjunction with mandatory conditions
specified in the Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatory and Default
Conditions)(England and Wales) Regulations 2007.

The Licensing Authority will also consider specific measures
which may be required for buildings which are subject to multiple
premises licences. Such measures may include the supervision
of entrances; segregation of gambling from non-gambling areas
frequented by children; and the supervision of gaming machines
in non-adult gambling specific premises, in order to pursue the
licensing objectives. These matters are in accordance with the
Gambling Commission’s Guidance and Codes of Practice.

The Licensing Authority will also ensure that where category C or
above machines are on offer in premises in which children are
admitted:

e all such machines are located in an area of the premises
which is separated from the remainder of the premises by a
physical barrier which is effective to prevent access other
than through a designated entrance;

e only adults are admitted to the area where these machines
are located,;

e access to the area where the machines are located is
supervised;

e the area where these machines are located is arranged so
that it can be observed by the staff or the licence holder;
and

e at the entrance to and inside any such areas there are
prominently displayed notices indicating that access to the
area is prohibited to persons under 18.

These considerations will apply to premises including buildings
where multiple premises licences are applicable.

23
Tudalen37



16.22.

16.23.

16.24.

16.25.

17.0.

17.1.

The Licensing Authority is aware that tracks may be subject to
one or more than one premises licence, provided each licence
relates to a specified area of the track. This Licensing Authority
will consider the impact upon the third licensing objective and the
need to ensure that entrances to each type of premises are
distinct and that children are excluded from gambling areas
where they are not permitted to enter.

It is noted that there are conditions which the Licensing Authority
cannot attach to premises licences which are:

¢ any condition on the premises licence which makes it
Impossible to comply with an operating licence condition;

e conditions relating to gaming machine categories,
numbers, or method of operation;

e conditions which provide that membership of a club or body
be required (the Gambling Act 2005 specifically removes
the membership requirement for casino and bingo clubs
and this provision prevents it being reinstated); and

e conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winning of prizes.

Door Supervisors:

The Gambling Commission advises in its Guidance to Licensing
Authorities that if a Licensing Authority is concerned that a
premises may attract disorder or be subject to attempts at
unauthorised access (for example by children and young
persons), then it may require that the entrances to the premises
are controlled by a door supervisor, and is entitled to impose a
conditions on the premises licence to this effect.

Where it is decided that supervision of entrances/machines is
appropriate for particular cases it will need to be decided whether
these need to be SIA licensed or not. It will not be automatically
assumed that they need to be licensed as the statutory
requirements for different types of premises vary.

Adult Gaming Centres

The Licensing Authority will specifically have regard to the need
to protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being
exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the
authority that there will be sufficient measures to, for example,

24
Tudalen38



17.2.

17.3.

18.0.

18.1.

18.2.

18.3.

ensure that under 18-year-olds do not have access to the
premises.

Where gambling facilities are provided at premises as a
supplementary activity to the main purpose of the premises;

e.g. motorway service areas and shopping malls. The Licensing
Authority will expect the gambling area to be clearly defined to
ensure that customers are fully aware that they are making a
choice to enter into the gambling premises and that the
premises is adequately supervised at all times.

The Licensing Authority may consider measures such as:

Proof of age schemes

CCTV

Supervision of entrances/machine areas

Physical separation of areas

Location of entry

Notices/signage

Specific opening hours

Self-barring schemes

Provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for
organisations such as GamCare.

This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely
indicative of example measures.

(Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres

The Licensing Authority will specifically have regard to the need
to protect children and vulnerable persons from harm or being
exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the
authority, for example, that there will be sufficient measures to
ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult
only gaming machine areas.

The applicant will be expected to provide evidence that a suitable
criminal record check with the Disclosure and Barring Service
(DBS) has been conducted on all staff in his/her employment.

Children and young persons are permitted entry to licensed
FECs but are not permitted to play Category C gaming machines.
The Licensing Authority expects the applicant to ensure that
there will be sufficient measures in place to prevent under 18

25
Tudalen39



year olds having access to the adult only gaming machine areas.
The Licensing Authority will expect applicants to meet the
licensing objectives and comply with all mandatory conditions
and Codes of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission.

18.4. There is a requirement that there must be clear segregation
between the types of machine in order that childr